
 

 

Thanet District Council, PO Box 9, Cecil Street, Margate, Kent, CT9 1XZ 
Tel: +44 (0)1843 577000 Fax: +44 (0)1843 290906 DX 30555 (Margate) www.thanet.gov.uk 

Chief Executive: Madeline Homer 

 
 

 
Date: 11 July 2017 
Ask For: James Clapson 
Direct Dial: 01843 577200 
Email: james.clapson@thanet.gov.uk 

 
 
 

THANET HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 
 

20 JULY 2017 
 
A meeting of the Thanet Health and Wellbeing Board will be held at 10.00 am on Thursday, 
20 July 2017 in the Council Chamber, Council Offices, Cecil Street, Margate, Kent. 
 

Membership: 
 
Councillor L Fairbrass, Councillor Gibbens, Clive Hart, Madeline Homer, Steve Inett, Mark 
Lobban, Dr Tony Martin, Sharon McLaughlin, Ailsa Ogilvie, Linda Smith and Councillor Wells 

 
 

AGENDA 
 

Item 
No 

                                                        Subject 

 

1. APPOINTMENT OF CHAIRMAN AND VICE CHAIRMAN FOR 2017/18  

2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

3. DECLARATION OF INTEREST  

4. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  (Pages 3 - 6) 

 To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 25 May 2017. 
 

5. HOUSING SITUATION IN THANET (IN GENERAL).   

  

6. EAST KENT DELIVERY BOARD UPDATE (Pages 7 - 10) 

 Declaration of Interests Form 
 

 
 
Please scan this barcode for an electronic copy of this agenda. 

 

Public Document Pack

Page 1



This page is intentionally left blank



THANET HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 
 

Minutes of the meeting held on 25 May 2017 at 10.00 am in the Austen Room, Council 
Offices, Cecil Street, Margate, Kent. 

 
 

Present: 
 

Madeline Homer (Chairman); Councillors L Fairbrass (Thanet District 
Council), Clive Hart (Thanet Clinical Commissioning Group), 
Sharon McLaughlin (Thanet Children's Committee) and 
Colin Thompson (Kent County Council) 
 

In Attendance: Karen Cook, Emma Hanson, Maria Howdon and Ailsa Ogilvie 
 

 
7. APPOINTMENT OF CHAIRMAN AND VICE CHAIRMAN FOR 2017/18  

 
The Board agreed that Madeline Homer be the Chairman for this meeting only and that 
the election of the substantive Chairman of the Board for 2017/18 be deferred to the next 
meeting scheduled for 20 July 2017. 
 
Madeline Homer in the Chair. 
 

8. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Apologies were received from the following members: 
 
Dr Martin; 
Cllr Wells; 
Cllr Gibbens; 
Hazel Carpenter; 
Steve Inett. 
 

9. DECLARATION OF INTEREST  
 
There were no declarations of interest made at the meeting. 
 

10. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  
 
The Board agreed the minutes to be a correct record of the meeting that was held on 9 
March 2017. 
 

11. LOCAL CARE UPDATE  
 
Maria Howdon introduced the report with a PowerPoint presentation, which is attached 
as an annex to the minutes. During debate the following points were made: 
 

 The Enhanced Frailty Pathway was a scheme for the over 60s that is used to identify 
pre-frailty before onset of the condition; 

 A multi-disciplinary team was set up for this pathway; 

 A number of players are involved that include the Hospices; 

 There will be upskilling of staff; 

 Medicines Optimisation - This approach has helped identify some medicines that 
some patients do not need; 

 There was an increasing number of referrals coming from Age UK; 

 There is now a reduction in non-elective activity; 

 Feedback regarding this approach has been positive; 

Page 3

Agenda Item 4



 
 

 Benefits for Thanet have been an estimated £25k saving for the A&E As a result of IT 
SET up which has seen surgeries being able to access patients records across 
surgeries; 

 There has been a positive effect on staff turnover- before the new approach there 
were 24 nurse vacancies and currently there are none; 

 This is evidence that the approach is working and having some good results. 
 
The Board made the following comments: 

 This was commendable work and there are opportunities to make the approach work 
even better; 

 Phase 2 of the programme will aim to improve access to services; 

 There is a Listening Event that has been arranged in Thanet to talk to the local 
residents about the East Kent Programme of working and the context within which the 
proposed changes to health delivery is going to work; 

 The Chair of the Royal College of General Practitioners, Dr Helen Lampard-Stokes 
and members of NHSE New Care Models Team will be visiting Thanet on 06 June 
2017 and will be at the Sands Hotel. Appointments will be sent out to all Thanet 
Health & Wellbeing Board Members. 

 
12. DRAFT KENT HEALTH AND WELLBEING STRATEGY  

 
Karen Cook introduced the report and the presentation was highly interactive. The 
following points were made: 
 

 The development of the Kent Health and Wellbeing Strategy was a statutory 
requirement; 

 The strategy sets out the priorities of the health requirements of the local population 
and this helps with the planning and commissioning decisions; 

 STP, Case for Change & Development – These were contextual issues in which the 
strategy was being developed; 

 The Kent Delivery Board signed off the draft strategy on 22 March 2017; 

 Thanet HWB was being asked to provide some feedback to the draft strategy; 

 A formal consultation would be conducted and focus group discussions will also be 
held with the voluntary sector; 
 
Priority 1 - Developing a preventative approach 

 Highlight the need to address reasons why individuals develop such problems; 

 Emphasise the need for early diagnosis for diabetes to prevent the problem getting 
worse; 

 Kent and Medway has been awarded There was a £1.4 million funding to increase 
patient participation in structured for educational programme for Kent and Medway 
on how individuals can live better lifestyles to improve self management; 

 Good housing helps towards creating that better lifestyle; 

 Transient housing is one of the problems affecting supporting families; 

 Social housing does improve housing conditions for communities; 

 A presentation on housing at the next Board meeting would be helpful; 

 There is a working group that is reviewing the measures of the work currently in 
progress. 
 
Priority 2 - Improving children’s health and wellbeing 

 In Thanet there is a 13 month wait list for diagnosis and getting help with children 
with speech and language difficulties; 

 Smoking in premises should also be included in the strategy as it affects children; 

 Alcohol misuse in young people needs to be in the strategy. 
 

Page 4

Agenda Item 4



 
 

Priority 3 - Promoting good mental health and emotional wellbeing 

 Resilience and prevention should be some of the terms to use in the strategy; 

 ADHDA and ASCA & C assessments – there is a backlog issue which needs 
addressing; 

 It was important to be mindful of medicalising behaviour. 
 
Priority 4 - People are supported to live well as they age and stay independent 
for as long as possible 

 Socialisation will need to be included as one of the factors that contribute to an 
individual’s wellbeing. 
 
Priority - 5 Reducing health inequalities 

 Commissioning services might be the key to addressing the issue of resource 
allocation where there are competing demands; 

 Commissioners would need to be given the right tools to make decisions that will 
deliver services that are effective; 
 
Priority 6 - The system works well together to support people in hospital and 
in the community 

 There were no suggestions made for this priority. 
 
In summary the Board agreed that these priorities in the draft strategy were appropriate 
for Thanet. 
 
Members request that a presentation be made to the next meeting on the ‘Housing 
Situation in Thanet (in General).’ The discussion would focus on the housing situation in 
Thanet in the context of health and wellbeing of the local community. 
 

13. EAST KENT DELIVERY BOARD UPDATE  
 
Alisa Ogilvie led the discussion and gave a brief update regarding the work of the 
Delivery Board and made the following points: 
 

 Changes being driven at East Kent level were the same as those underway in 
Thanet; 

 A Listening Event has been arranged for end of June/ early July 2017; 

 The event will receive wide publicity; 

 A number of staff have been ‘Esther Trained;’ 

 Esther listening events were going to be conducted in June 2017. 
 
The report was noted. 
 

14. THANET HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD MEMBERSHIP  
 
Members raised the following points: 
 

 Was the timing right for the board to consider including the voluntary sector in the 
Board membership moving forward? 

 The voluntary sector was a key stakeholder in health and wellbeing matters for 
the local community; 

 The challenge was to come up with selection criteria for appointing 
representatives that was fair; 

 It might be that a representative each representing children’s and another 
representing adults’ wellbeing is appointed; 

 Members were going to explore this further outside the meeting and feedback to 
the next Board meeting. 

 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



 
 

Subject to the above, there was agreement to voluntary sector membership. 
 
11.00 am: 
The Board briefly adjourned the meeting to observe a minute’s silence. 
 
AOB 
Sharon McLaughlin gave an update on current work activities of the LCPG as follows: 

 2 sub-groups have been set up; 

 One is the Opportunities to Achieve Sub Group; 

 Another is the Keeping Safe Sub Group; 

 Between them they run a number of projects that can access £55,000 that was 
allocated this year to the assist with the work of the LCPG; 
 
Opportunities to Achieve projects 

 One of the projects is on working with children 

 Child in need and child protection; 

 Another project was on working with youth groups in Broadstairs (diversion 
activities in summer); 
 
Keeping Safe projects 

 Oasis are working with selected primary schools; 

 In discussion with Penny Button on another a project idea for supporting troubled 
families, which could focus on domestic abuse in Thanet; 

 There was a suggestion that early intervention to work with affected children 
affected by domestic abuse from an early age; 

 There were current considerations for joint funding with the Arts Council on 
working with young children (early years) 

 And working with frontline stuff on how to de-escalate situations at the workplace. 
 
 
 
Meeting concluded: 11.10 am 
 
 

Page 6

Agenda Item 4



  

 

 

Page 1 

 

The East Kent Programme Board member organisations include: 
NHS South Kent Coast CCG; NHS Canterbury and Coastal CCG; NHS Ashford CCG; NHS Thanet CCG; East Kent Hospitals 
University NHS Foundation Trust; Kent Community Health NHS Foundation Trust; Kent & Medway NHS and Social Care 
Partnership Trust; South East Coast Ambulance NHS Foundation Trust; and Kent County Council. 

Update from the meeting of the East Kent Programme Board on 8 June 2017 
 
 
About the East Kent Programme Board 
The East Kent Programme Board has been set up by local health and care commissioners to spearhead the 
drive to determine how best to provide health and care services to the population of east Kent. Its work is part 
of the wider Sustainability and Transformation Plan (STP) for Kent and Medway. 
 
Comprising all organisations involved in the planning, provision and delivery of health and care services in this 
area, the Board is an advisory board with a clinical chair. Its membership includes the chief executives and 
most senior clinicians and leaders of east Kent’s NHS and care services.  The Board oversees a work 
programme and advises local health and care commissioners whose role it is to plan the future pattern of 
services across east Kent.  

As of 17 November 2016, the East Kent Programme Board has a new and formalised role within the 
governance structure of the Kent and Medway STP. This allows the Board to build on the work it has done at 
an east Kent level with colleagues in health and social care across Kent and Medway.  

The following themes were discussed at the meeting: 

Clarity of purpose 
The Chair set out a clear purpose for the meeting. 

•To ensure alignment around progress to date and forward plan to transformation which includes 
consultation for East Kent acute services reconfiguration 
•To agree ways of working between all partners to ensure all parties are appropriately involved as the 
work develops. 

It was agreed that the East Kent Programme Board was a forum to unlock silos and to facilitate work across 
organisational boundaries.  There was alignment around shared goals and continued commitment to work 
together to promote health and wellbeing and reduce health inequalities,  and to improve hospital and local 
(out of hospital, including health and social care) services for people in east Kent, working within the available 
funding. 
 
Hospital care workstream update 
The board received an update on the work of the hospital care workstream, where the priority focus is on 
urgent and emergency care, acute medical care and elective orthopaedic services in east Kent, and stroke and 
vascular services across the whole of Kent and Medway.  These services have been assessed as most in need of 
change to make sure they consistently meet national quality standards.  Kent and Medway currently has the 
worst outcomes for stroke in the country and work continues with focus around proposals to develop hyper 
acute stroke units to offer more concentrated specialist care in the critical first 72 hours after a stroke.  The 
work in east Kent continues with the development of a model of care based on Sir Bruce Keogh’s clinical model 
for urgent and emergency care.  The emerging proposal is to establish a major emergency centre with 
specialist services; an emergency centre and a medical emergency centre, creating a sustaintable model across 
all three of the main EKHUFT hospital sites.  This proposed model of care, and hurdle criteria to apply to a long 
list of options, has been discussed widely, including with the South East Clinical Senate.  Patients and the 
public are being asked for their views on the model of care at a series of listening events in June and July.  
Hurdle criteria were discussed with patients and the public at a series of events in the Spring of this year.  

Page 7

Agenda Item 6



 

 

 

Page 2 

The East Kent Programme Board member organisations include: 
NHS South Kent Coast CCG; NHS Canterbury and Coastal CCG; NHS Ashford CCG; NHS Thanet CCG; East Kent Hospitals 
University NHS Foundation Trust; Kent Community Health NHS Foundation Trust; Kent & Medway NHS and Social Care 
Partnership Trust; South East Coast Ambulance NHS Foundation Trust; and Kent County Council. 

 
In terms of process, once the hurdle criteria have been applied to create a medium list of options there will be 
a specific Clinical Board meeting to identify and discuss clinical interdependencies between the different 
service options (acute medical, urgent and emergency and elective orthopaedic services in east Kent, and 
stroke and vascular services across Kent and Medway) and how the options interact with each other to 
develop a final shortlist of options. 
 
The workstream will be developing a pre-consultation business case which is a necessary pre-requisite before 
formal consultation can be agreed by the clinical commissioning groups responsible for leading consultation on 
any proposed service change.  Work continues with the CCG governing bodies to establish joint governance 
arrangements (for example in the form of a joint committee) for consultation. 
 
Progress on delivering local care 
Whilst across Kent and Medway there is a collective agreement on the principles and framework for the future 
of local care, each CCG is responsible for developing and implementing the work locally.  The Board received 
reports on each CCG’s individual progress on developing plans for their population in their area.   
 
Thanet has looked at how to increase the population served by practices, the mix of staff required and the 
implementation of services which support everyone; such as the ‘acute response team’ which has had a very 
positive response from patients and staff.   
 
In South Kent Coast all practices have agreed to work together as a single provider/collborative to offer 
additional services such as multi-disciplinary teams, hubs or home visiting services.  They are currently 
focusing on bridging the gap between mental health, primary care and secondary care and intend trialling 
enhanced services for dementia from July/August.   
 
Encompass is the collective of GP practices across Canterbury and Coastal CCG which have established 
multidisciplinary teams, and agreed five community health operational centres.  The EMIS system (for 
electronic patient records) will provide the connectivity between practices and wider provider services.  
Currently their focus is on growing the number of ‘GPs with special interests’ (ie those who specialise in, for 
example, diabetes or mental health), geriatrician support and increased working with the hospice and 
voluntary sector.  They reported that the WAITLESS app has facilitated a shift of 5% of people from A&E to 
MIUs in the area. 

Ashford CCG have agreed the potential for developing multidisciplinary teams which can be supported via 
their alliance with KCHFT.  They have had success with improved catheter and wound care, better connectivity 
via EMIS for patient records and reduced A&E admissions due to closer local working.  Herne Bay has 
established their integrated urgent care centre at the Queen Victoria hospital, and are looking at improving 
opthalmology services. 
 
There was a debate around whether sufficient local care work was in place (ie at sufficient scale) to increase 
local capacity enough to allow for changes that need to be made for patients currently in an acute care setting.  
There was a discussion on the need to develop a single capacity plan for hospital and local care in the round, 
recognising the ambition to look at pathways of care for the population rather than looking at capacity 
organisation by organisation.  The board agreed it was also ‘whole system capacity’ that was needed, ie service 
capacity rather than bed capacity, and recognising the critical importance of social care.  All agreed that this 
was not about a ‘send and receive’ process from acute to local care, but about developing an holistic approach 
across the system for patients. 
 

Page 8

Agenda Item 6



 

 

 

Page 3 

The East Kent Programme Board member organisations include: 
NHS South Kent Coast CCG; NHS Canterbury and Coastal CCG; NHS Ashford CCG; NHS Thanet CCG; East Kent Hospitals 
University NHS Foundation Trust; Kent Community Health NHS Foundation Trust; Kent & Medway NHS and Social Care 
Partnership Trust; South East Coast Ambulance NHS Foundation Trust; and Kent County Council. 

There was also a discussion on increasing the rate of change, acknowledging that it was ‘easier to copy than to 
invent’, learning the lessons from where others have already made progress. 
 
Accountable care system 
The board received a brief update on developing an accountable care system within east Kent.  A system 
transformation workstream has been recently established as part of the Kent and Medway sustainability and 
transformation work programme.  The development of accountable care systems will be part of the focus of 
this workstream.   
 
Digital transformation 
An options paper is being developed to look at investment options to support the development of a single care 
record/Kent care record. 
 
Estates transformation 
There isn’t yet a full estates strategy for Kent and Medway, although this is a work in progress led by the 
estates workstream for the Kent and Medway sustainability and transformation work programme.  The board 
received an update on the establishment of an east Kent task and finish group to focus on this and to link in 
with the ‘one public estate’ discussions as part of the overarching estates workstream.  
 

For more information about the work of the East Kent Programme Board visit: http://eastkent.nhs.uk/   
 

Ends 

 

Page 9

Agenda Item 6

http://eastkent.nhs.uk/


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

THANET DISTRICT COUNCIL DECLARATION OF INTEREST FORM 
 
Do I have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest and if so what action should I take?  
 
Your Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPI) are those interests that are, or should be, listed on 
your Register of Interest Form.  
 
If you are at a meeting and the subject relating to one of your DPIs is to be discussed, in so 
far as you are aware of the DPI, you must declare the existence and explain the nature of the 
DPI during the declarations of interest agenda item, at the commencement of the item under 
discussion, or when the interest has become apparent 
 
Once you have declared that you have a DPI (unless you have been granted a dispensation 
by the Standards Committee or the Monitoring Officer, for which you will have applied to the 
Monitoring Officer prior to the meeting) you must:-  

 
1. Not speak or vote on the matter; 
2. Withdraw from the meeting room during  the consideration of the matter; 
3. Not seek to improperly influence the decision on the matter.  

 
Do I have a significant interest and if so what action should I take? 
 
A significant interest is an interest (other than a DPI or an interest in an Authority Function) 
which: 
1. Affects the financial position of yourself and/or an associated person; or 

Relates to the determination of your application for any approval, consent, licence, 
permission or registration made by, or on your behalf of, you and/or an associated 
person;  

2. And which, in either case, a member of the public with knowledge of the relevant facts 
would reasonably regard as being so significant that it is likely to prejudice your judgment 
of the public interest.     

 
An associated person is defined as: 

 A family member or any other person with whom you have a close association, including 
your spouse, civil partner, or somebody with whom you are living as a husband or wife, 
or as if you are civil partners; or 

 Any person or body who employs or has appointed such persons, any firm in which they 
are a partner, or any company of which they are directors; or 

 Any person or body in whom such persons have a beneficial interest in a class of 
securities exceeding the nominal value of £25,000;  

 Any body of which you are in a position of general control or management and to which 
you are appointed or nominated by the Authority; or 

 any body in respect of which you are in a position of general control or management and 
which: 
- exercises functions of a public nature; or 
- is directed to charitable purposes; or 
- has as its principal purpose or one of its principal purposes the influence of public 

opinion or policy (including any political party or trade union) 
 
An Authority Function is defined as: -  

 Housing - where you are a tenant of the Council provided that those functions do not 
relate particularly to your tenancy or lease; or 

 Any allowance, payment or indemnity given to members of the Council; 

 Any ceremonial honour given to members of the  Council 

 Setting the Council Tax or a precept under the Local Government Finance Act 1992     
 

If you are at a meeting and you think that you have a significant interest then you must 
declare the existence and nature of the significant interest at the commencement of the 

Page 11



 

 

matter, or when the interest has become apparent, or the declarations of interest agenda 
item.  
 
Once you have declared that you have a significant interest (unless you have been granted a 
dispensation by the Standards Committee or the Monitoring Officer, for which you will have 
applied to the Monitoring Officer prior to the meeting) you must:- 
 
1. Not speak or vote (unless the public have speaking rights, or you are present to make 

representations, answer questions or to give evidence relating to the business being 
discussed in which case you can speak only) 

2. Withdraw from the meeting during consideration of the matter or immediately after 
speaking. 

3. Not seek to improperly influence the decision.  

 
Gifts, Benefits and Hospitality 
 
Councillors must declare at meetings any gift, benefit or hospitality with an estimated value (or 
cumulative value if a series of gifts etc.) of £25 or more. You must, at the commencement of 
the meeting or when the interest becomes apparent, disclose the existence and nature of the 
gift, benefit or hospitality, the identity of the donor and how the business under consideration 
relates to that person or body. However you can stay in the meeting unless it constitutes a 
significant interest, in which case it should be declared as outlined above.   
 

What if I am unsure? 
 
If you are in any doubt, Members are strongly advised to seek advice from the Monitoring 
Officer or the Committee Services Manager well in advance of the meeting. 

 
DECLARATION OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTERESTS, 

SIGNIFICANT INTERESTS AND GIFTS, BENEFITS AND HOSPITALITY 

 
MEETING………………………………………………………………………………………………... 
 
DATE…………………………………………… AGENDA ITEM …………………………………… 
 

DISCRETIONARY PECUNIARY INTEREST    
 

SIGNIFICANT INTEREST      
 

GIFTS, BENEFITS AND HOSPITALITY     
 
THE NATURE OF THE INTEREST, GIFT, BENEFITS OR HOSPITALITY: 
 
…………………………………………………………………………………………………………… 
 
……………………………………………………………………………………………….…………… 
 
……………………………………………………………………………………………………………. 
 
NAME (PRINT): ………………………………………………………………………………………… 
 
 
SIGNATURE: …………………………………………………………………………………………… 
 
Please detach and hand this form to the Democratic Services Officer when you are asked to 
declare any interests. 
 

Page 12


	Agenda
	4 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
	6 EAST KENT DELIVERY BOARD UPDATE
	 Declaration of Interests Form

